
Social Concerns Committee Meeting Minutes 
Monday, May 10, 2010 

12:30 ~ 2:00 p.m. 
Morrill Hall, 238A 

 
[These minutes reflect discussion and debate at a meeting of a committee of the University of 
Minnesota Senate; none of the comments, conclusions or actions reported in these minutes 
represent the views of, nor are they binding on, the Senate, the Administration or the Board of 
Regents.] 
 
[In these minutes ~ Religious holidays; Campus safety] 
 
Present:  Timothy Sheldon (chair), Ahmed Heikal, Benton Schnabel, Lisa Pogoff, Catherine 
Jordan, Rebecca Von Dissen, Marynel Ryan Van Zee, Kimberly Robein, Joseph Marchesani, 
Katherine Fennelly, Ashley Gaschk, Kaari Nelson, Michael O’Day, Amelious Whyte, Michael 
Sommers 
 
Regrets:  Elizabeth Shay, Shannon Biegger, Carolyn Wardell, Austin Loeb, Dave Golden 
 
Absent:  Sandra Krebsbach, Ajay Skaria, Christine Dolph, Jeffrey Thaler 
 
Guest:  Deputy Chief Chuck Miner, University Police Department 
 
Chair Sheldon called the meeting to order and welcomed the committee.  He reminded members 
that Ms. Pogoff was drafting a statement regarding religious holidays and turned to her for an 
update. 
 
Religious Holidays ~ Discussion 
 
Ms. Pogoff summarized the religious holidays statement she wrote saying that it points out the 
fact that non-Christians are required to take Christian holidays off yet there are no paid religious 
holidays for other religions.  She suggested that the committee look at other institutions and their 
holiday policies for ideas.  Chair Sheldon said he had a conversation with Vickie Courtney, 
University Senate Office, and Ms. Courtney suggested proposing a motion to the University 
Senate seeing that it is a global issue at the University.  She also suggested the committee consult 
with other appropriate governance committees.  He said that would be an appropriate way to 
advance the issue and if the Senate approves it, the administration would act on it.  Professor 
Jordan suggested there may be ramifications to closing the University for non-Christian holidays 
that would make it difficult to do so.  She also agreed that they should do some background 
research on other institutions.  Mr. Schnabel mentioned that Civil Service employees have a 
floating personal holiday.  Members discussed the faculty/P&A floating holiday but it was 
agreed by members that it was not a real floating holiday because faculty/P&A are required to 
take it within the winter break versus a time of their own choosing.  Mr. Marchesani raised the 
question of why religious holidays are recognized at public universities at all.  Pogoff responded 
that the holidays are national holidays and the University uses them to close the campus and save 
money.  Schnabel added that the Civil Service employee floating holiday does need to be taken 



within the fiscal year.  Sheldon added that the Senate will not act on anything this spring so there 
is enough time to move the issue forward to the fall.  He said Ms. Courtney offered to help in the 
formatting and preparation of the motion so it would be ready to go through the governance 
system.  He suggested that in the meantime perhaps committee members could do some fact-
finding research over the summer. 
 
Campus Safety ~ Deputy Chief Chuck Miner 
 
Deputy Chief Miner began by giving members general information about the University of 
Minnesota Police Department (UMPD).  He stated that they are a part of the Department of 
Public Safety and work in unison with the Minneapolis/St. Paul Police Departments.  He added 
that they are unique in that they are the only higher education institution in the state with their 
own police department.  UMPD officers are required to have the same education and training as 
other Minnesota peace officers and they are licensed by the state.  Miner said the campus is 
equipped with 1800 cameras system-wide and there are several units that have card access only 
entrances, so they are able to keep track of who is coming and going.  He said there are 50 
officers on the Twin Cities campus with four to five officers patrolling the campus at all times 
and a response rate of two to three minutes per call.  He said that currently, they have the highest 
number of officers employed since the 1970’s, at which time the department experienced steady 
reduction.  He noted that the main station is located in the Transportation and Safety Building.  
The department was formed in the 1940’s and there are officers in cars, on foot, on bicycles, 
motorcycles and horseback.  He mentioned that coordinate campuses have their own officers. 

Miner said there has been much concern expressed at the department in connection with the 
recent on and off campus robberies and shooting on campus.  He noted that the shooting was the 
first known case in which a student was shot on campus.  He said they apprehended a suspect 
within 48 hours who has been charged and convicted.  They are still seeking charges on the other 
two suspects.  He did note there was a robbery on February 23rd at approximately 2:30 p.m. at 
the Carlson School of Management and they did not have any suspects thus far but think it may 
be neighborhood youth.  Miner said it was an unusual crime because most robberies occur 
between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 2:00 a.m. and the victims have generally consumed alcohol 
and are distracted by phones and other devices, which make them easy marks.  He urged 
members to use common sense about their space and property and that the campus police can be 
reached by dialing 911 on a campus phone or on a cell phone when on or near campus.   

Deputy Chief Miner said that the Twin Cities campus is unique in its urban setting, which brings 
about challenges that other campus rarely face.  He noted that there are a couple of challenging 
neighborhoods that surround the campus and the bulk of their efforts are spent protecting the 
University community from those not affiliated with the University that come to campus to 
perpetrate crime.  He stated that in the last nine years, crime has decreased on campus by 30%.  
He said that theft is the most common crime and that the crime rate has dropped by more than 
half since 1995.  The department does issue trespassing warnings to those on campus that are 
violating laws and Miner said that does help deter crime.  He stated that there is a large homeless 
population on and around campus but very few of those people are responsible for theft.   

Miner stated that the department has received a lot of feedback about the lack of emergency 
communication from them, especially in light of recent events.  He said they do send out public 



safety alerts, in accordance with the federal Jeanne Clery Act, via email to inform employees. He 
stated that their department could be fined by the U.S. Department of Education if they fail to 
send the alerts.  Most of the alerts they send out are actually for crimes that occur in nearby off-
campus neighborhoods however the UMPD has a limited ability to control crime off-campus.  
There is a TXT-U program on campus and for those signed up, they receive a text message to 
alert them about emergencies on campus that may affect the safety of the university community.  
He noted that next fall, students will need to actively opt out of the TXT-U program in order not 
to receive texts but employees need to sign up if they want it and as of now, there are very few 
signed up.  He said there are tone alert radios in most departments that can receive messages 
from the UMPD Dispatch Center and this coming summer, one dozen outdoor warning speakers 
will be installed on campus as another precautionary measure.   

Deputy Chief Miner said the UMPD has a close affiliation with the Minneapolis Police 
Department (MPD).  He said they work very closely together and have an excellent working 
relationship.  He said the UMPD meets every week at the second precinct and helps the MPD 
respond to calls when they are short-handed.  He said the University hires MPD and other area 
officers to serve as peace officers during stadium events.  He stated that 25% of their active duty 
last year was spent assisting the MPD with off-campus crimes.  Ms. Pogoff asked what was 
considered the geographical boundaries for “on campus”.  Miner responded that it is the same 
map area that is listed on the University’s website detailing the campus.  Professor Heikal asked 
if the UMPD plays an active role in providing safety workshops for staff and students.  Miner 
responded that they do.  He suggested contacting the UMPD to request an officer to come and 
speak to groups about safety and crime prevention.  He added that they participate in new student 
orientation during Welcome Week giving presentations to students and parents.  Ms. Pogoff 
asked if there are any self-defense courses offered.  Miner replied that the University does have a 
self-defense course entitled RAD (rape, aggression, defense).  The instructor can be scheduled 
upon request to give a course in self-defense.  Miner stated that the course used to be offered on 
a regular basis but it was underutilized.   

Professor Fennelly asked if UMPD officers were checking for legal U.S. status with citizens they 
come in contact with on a regular basis given the increasing immigration concerns in the country.  
Miner responded that the only time they might do that is if they do a warrant check on someone 
and immigration information comes up on the check.  Mr. O’Day asked what criteria are used to 
determine sending a crime alert for off campus situations.  Miner responded that many factors 
are taken into consideration such as the neighborhood of the crime, if the victim is a University 
student or employee and the probability of the perpetrator to strike again.  It depends on how 
closely the crime relates to the University without being on campus.   
 
Mr. Whyte stated that there have been enhancements to student safety.  He stated that the number 
of students bussing across Washington Avenue has increased and created a demand for extended 
bussing hours.  Busses now run across Washington Avenue until 10:00 p.m.  He said there is also 
an escort service for those who may stay on campus later and do not want to walk to their cars or 
other transportation alone.  Deputy Chief Miner added that the escort service is for University 
employees as well and the number is 624-WALK (9255).   Chair Sheldon asked about the level 
of sexual assaults on campus.  Miner responded that there have been no sexual assaults on 
campus to date this year.  He added that there are generally six to seven sexual assaults per year 
and they are usually acquaintance related.  Miner said that all crimes have been gradually 



decreasing for the past ten years across the country.  He stated that the average thefts on campus 
per year used to range around 1,500 and are now down to approximately 700.  He said part of the 
shift is the more proactive technology available to produce crime trends and mapping as well as a 
societal shift in its views towards crime and incarceration.  Miner noted that there are always 
seasonal crimes such as bike theft.  Ms. Pogoff asked if any research has been done on the 
amount of sexual assaults that go unreported.  Miner responded that they do receive reports from 
the Aurora Center, which they use in conjunction with their own statistics but sexual assault is 
the least reported crime in society.   
 
Religious Holiday Discussion, Continued 
 
Chair Sheldon asked members if anyone was willing to do some research on other institutions’ 
religious holiday practices.  Professor Ryan Van Zee suggested they simply propose fairness 
across employee groups and allow one floating holiday for employees to use when they wish.  
Sheldon agreed to that suggestion and recommended that they move forward and present the 
motion to the Senate in the fall.  Ms. Gaschk asked about the parity between Civil Service 
employees and faculty/staff because Civil Service would then have two personal days and 
faculty/staff only one.  It was noted that faculty do receive a floating holiday already, even 
though the time it is to be taken is mandated by administration.  Ryan Van Zee stated that there 
will probably always be differences between the groups and that part of the major reason they are 
doing this is to make a statement in recognition of non-Christian groups on campus.  Sheldon 
suggested the statement have a second draft to include today’s conversation and points.  Pogoff 
said she would update the draft with new language.   
 
Old/New Business 
 
Professor Fennelly said that she will be on the Faculty Retirement Committee starting next fall.  
She said she would like to know how many people are selecting the socially responsible option 
in their benefits plan.  She is concerned about the ramifications if not enough people subscribe to 
it and would like to be invited back to a Social Concerns Committee meeting some time in the 
next academic year to discuss this topic.   
 
Chair Sheldon thanked committee members for their Committee service.   
 
Hearing no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:45 p.m. 
 
Lisa Towry 
University Senate Office 


